
Riverton City 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Minutes 
Tuesday, September 3, 2013 

 
Riverton City Hall  

12830 South 1700 West  
Riverton, Utah 84065  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Attendance:  
 
Mayor William R. Applegarth  
 
Council Members:      City Staff:  
Council Member Brent Johnson   Lance Blackwood, City Manager  
Council Member Al Leavitt     Ryan Carter, City Attorney  
Council Member Sheldon Stewart   Virginia Loader, Recorder  
Council Member Tracy Thaxton    Trace Robinson, Public Works Director  
Council Member Roy Tingey    Jason Lethbridge, Planning Manager 
       Sheril Garn, Parks & Recreation Director 
       Chief Norton, UPD 
       Erik Sandstron, UFA Asst. Chief 
         
Citizens: Michael Johnson, Wyoma Darlington, Gina Sipos, Curtis Butterfield, Maryanne Butterfield & 
kids, Dale G, Stan Holland, Leslie Mascaro, Bob Ford, Mark Newman, Bus Kemp, Dan Bowles, Mike 
Rowe, Troop 352, Lisa Stocking, Carol Stocking, Shevson Astle, Paul Wayman, Dean Chappell, Gorm 
Klungervik 
 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
6:30:42 PM Call to Order and Roll Call - Mayor Applegarth called the meeting to order at 6:30 
p.m. and welcomed those in attendance. He then conducted a Roll Call and Council Members 
Johnson, Leavitt, Stewart, Thaxton and Tingey were present.   
 
Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Sheldon Stewart directed the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 
Mayor Applegarth explained the public comment procedure and welcomed public comments.   
 
6:35:22 PM Jason Bible proposed that Riverton City adopt an ordinance allowing the use of 
Low Speed Vehicles (LSV’s) and Personal Neighborhood Vehicles (PNV’s), and Golf Carts; 
defined by the National Highway Transportation Safety Administration as a 4-wheel vehicle 
designed not to exceed 25 mph, on City streets where speed limits do not exceed 35 mph. He 
provided the Council Members with a copy of his proposal and spoke of the advantages of his 
proposal. 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;18:30:42&quot;?Data=&quot;49985186&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;18:35:22&quot;?Data=&quot;85f5a244&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 2 

7:08:52 PM There were no further public comments and Mayor Applegarth closed the Public 
Comment period. 
 
STAFF REPORTS 
 
6:38:27 PM Lance Blackwood, City Manager, called for Staff Reports – No reports. 
 
Safety Training – No report 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
1. Public Hearing – regarding proposed amendments to the Land Use Element of the 
Riverton City General Plan, Amendments proposed by Riverton City 
 
6:39:07 PM  Mayor Applegarth explained that a General Plan is a plan, along with a map 
showing proposed future land uses for properties within Riverton City. Riverton City has 
proposed amendments to the Land Use Element, to update future land use designations for 
specific properties within Riverton City.  The update primarily affects existing vacant land 
within the City, but also addressed land use designations for existing developed areas.   
 
6:48:41 PM Jason Lethbridge, Planning Manager, explained that the Planning Commission, 
following several work sessions and public hearings, forwarded a recommended Land Use Map 
to the City Council with their proposed amendments and the City Council reviewed and made 
initial comments on the Draft at a Work Session. Mr. Lethbridge then reviewed the map 
explaining each area in detail. 
 
Brief discussion was held regarding the area from the Jordan River east to Redwood Road from 
12600 South to the northern border.  
 
7:08:55 PM Mr. Lethbridge explained the proposed Business Transition District on 1700 West 
north from 12600 South. 
 
Mayor Applegarth opened a Public Hearing and called for public comments.  
 
7:14:57 PM Council Member Al Leavitt clarified that the lots in the proposed Business 
Transition District Zone are deep and the proposed zone would run from the front property line 
to the back property line. 
 
The area from Redwood Road to 2700 West included two rezones; however, no comments were 
given. 
 
2. Public Hearing – regarding a proposed rezone of 37.11 acres located at 2542 W 11800 S 
from R-3 (Residential 1/3 Acre Lots) to R-4 (Residential ¼ Acre Lots) – Ivory 
Development, Applicant 
 
7:16:34 PM Jason Lethbridge, Planning Manager, explained that Ivory Homes submitted a 
rezone application for 37.11 acres located at approximately 2542 West 11800 South. The 
property is currently zoned R-3, which requires a minimum lot size of 1/3 acre lots. The 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;20-Aug-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:08:52&quot;?Data=&quot;cec03568&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;18:38:27&quot;?Data=&quot;1292b0&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;18:39:07&quot;?Data=&quot;3ef66f6e&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;18:48:41&quot;?Data=&quot;4fc0793c&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:08:55&quot;?Data=&quot;7d559487&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:14:57&quot;?Data=&quot;41cfc8a1&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:16:34&quot;?Data=&quot;14afb4b0&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 3 

surrounding property to the north and east is also zoned R-3, but is separated from the property 
by Midas Creek to the north and a canal to the east. The property to the south, across 11800 
South is zoned a mix of RR-22 and R-4.  The property to the west, across 2700 West, is in South 
Jordan City, and is zoned for single family lots. He said that Ivory Homes has requested a rezone 
of the property to R-4, which would allow for a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet.  
 
Mr. Lethbridge said that on June 27, 2013, the Planning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of the rezone application and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 
7:18:33 PM Mayor Applegarth opened a Public Hearing and first called for public comments 
from Riverton residents living on 11625 South. 
 
7:19:32 PM Clyde Page proposed that City Council agree with the proposal as explained by Mr. 
Lethbridge. 
 
7:22:44 PM Randy Larsen said the Midas Creek easement was his main concern and that the 
easement not be included in determining 14,000 sq ft lots.    
 
7:25:16 PM Dan Bowles said his general concern was regarding high density because he does 
not feel that the infrastructure supports high density. 
 
Kathleen Clemens agreed with the proposed compromise but said she preferred 1/3 acre lots 
and she wanted to ensure there would not be an opening on to their street.  
 
7:29:29 PM Katie Bowles said the proposed rezone was of great concern to her neighborhood 
because the County operates the creek and she related her concern about the easement. It was 
then explained to her that the zoning would be included in a subdivision plot, which the County 
is required to sign off on, and then it would go to the Council for subdivision approval.  
 
7:35:02 PM Richard Clemens said he supported the comments that had previously been made 
and he supported the proposed compromise.  
 
7:36:09 PM Lisa Stocking said she and her mother Carol Stocking preferred 1/3 acre lots with 
no traffic but they were sportive of the proposed compromise. 
 
Mayor Applegarth then opened the Public Hearing to the public.  
 
7:37:29 PM Unidentified - spoke of twin homes and said he was concerned with the intersection 
at 2700 West 11800 South.     
 
City Engineer Trace Robinson said he was working with South Jordan City regarding that 
intersection. 
 
7:42:03 PM Gina Sipos, representing Monte Vista Elementary, said she did not like the smaller 
lots and would like to keep larger lots and open spaces. She also said she was concerned about 
additional schools and traffic.   
 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:18:33&quot;?Data=&quot;e4de9c16&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:19:32&quot;?Data=&quot;c0a584e7&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:22:44&quot;?Data=&quot;62f4765b&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:25:16&quot;?Data=&quot;e4290a22&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:29:29&quot;?Data=&quot;a40745b5&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:35:02&quot;?Data=&quot;4adb76b4&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:36:09&quot;?Data=&quot;ee8fd5af&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:37:29&quot;?Data=&quot;d06b2871&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:42:03&quot;?Data=&quot;fce5ab5d&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 4 

7:46:29 PM Mike Rowe said he moved to Riverton for the space and did not want to see ¼ acre 
lots. He said he did not see the economic benefit of ¼ acre lots or how it benefited anyone except 
the developer.   
 
7:48:51 PM Trent Staggs voiced support for the proposed compromised plan.  
 
7:50:00 PM Curtis Butterfield expressed his concern of going from larger lots to smaller lots.  
He said the property was zoned that way years ago but it returns to the City Council for change 
to occur. He urged the Council to manage the growth and match was what was currently there.  
He spoke in favor of the compromise. 
 
7:51:27 PM Cody Bearden said that none of the residents want R-4 zoning except the 
landowners and developers; the residents want R-3. 
 
7:52:47 PM Ralph Braddick said he agreed with some comments but he would prefer R-3 
zoning.  He said he moved to Riverton in order to have ½ acre lot and now Riverton is losing its 
rural status. 
 
7:53:47 PM Dan McDougal said he agreed with previous comments and he would like to keep 
1/3 acre lots. 
 
7:54:42 PM Sam Omen said he agreed with previous comments and he would like to keep 1/3 
acre lots. 
 
7:56:17 PM Chris Gamvroulous, Ivory Development, thanked all who spoke. He said he 
concurred with the SD Designation of the R-3 around the perimeter on the north and the east 
side, no road access on to 11625 and to have the roads connect on to 11800 South and to 2700 
West.  He said he would work out the easement issue with Engineer Trace Robinson and County 
Flood Control.  He spoke of meetings that had been held regarding the proposed rezone issue and 
said that no secret meeting had been held. He then asked for a positive approval on the proposed 
rezone request. 
 
7:59:33 PM There being no further comments, Mayor Applegarth declared the Public Hearing 
closed. 
 
 Ordinance No. 13-13 – Rezoning 37.11 Acres, 2542 West 11800 South, proposed 
     rezone from R-3 to R-4, Ivory Homes, Applicant 
 
8:00:05 PM Council Member Al Leavitt MOVED the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 13-
13 – Rezoning 37.11 Acres, located at approximately 2542 West 11800 South leaving all 
residential building lots adjacent to the north and east property lines to meet the minimum 
1/3 acre lot size and that is to not include any easement on Midas Creek; 2. no roadway 
connection shall be made to 11605 or 11625 South, the contractor would have a solid 
masonry fence consistent with the required collector street fencing on 2700 West and 11800 
South to be installed on the north and east property lines adjacent to Midas  Creek and the 
canal.  Council Member Tracy Thaxton SECONDED the motion. Council Member Leavitt 
added the following to his motion: suggested leaving all the lots along on the north and east 
property lines all remaining lots would then be ¼ acre.   Council Member Thaxton accepted 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:46:29&quot;?Data=&quot;f00e3179&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:48:51&quot;?Data=&quot;82a81395&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:50:00&quot;?Data=&quot;6654785b&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:27&quot;?Data=&quot;17f11342&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:52:47&quot;?Data=&quot;54dc1520&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:53:47&quot;?Data=&quot;69bc3c90&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:54:42&quot;?Data=&quot;a6eb14c5&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:56:17&quot;?Data=&quot;a797710b&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;19:59:33&quot;?Data=&quot;422ff7b0&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:00:05&quot;?Data=&quot;6d2c3a43&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 5 

the addition as part of his Second.  Mayor Applegarth called for discussion on the motion; there 
being none, he called for a Roll Call Vote.  The vote was as follows: Johnson-No, Leavitt-Yes, 
Stewart-Yes, Thaxton-Yes and Tingey-No. The motion passed 3 to 2. 
 
3. Public Hearing - regarding a proposed rezone of 6.89 acres located at 1863 W 11900 S 
be rezoned from R-3 (Residential 1/3 Acre Lots) to R-4-SD (Residential ¼ Acre Lots with 
Specific Development Designation) – Henry Walker Homes, Applicant 
 
8:03:10 PM Jason Lethbridge, Planning Manager, explained that Henry Walker Homes 
previously submitted an application to rezone properties located at 1863 West 11900 South. That 
application for rezone to R-4 was denied by the City Council.  The applicant proposed via a new 
application rezone to R-4-SD, the 'SD' signifying a Specific Development designation, which 
allows the City to make additional requirements on the zoning, such as an increase in minimum 
required square footage, architectural requirements, etc. The applicant proposed several 
restrictions that are reflected in the Planning Commission’s recommendation.  The Commission 
also included the limitation on number of lots, specifying no more than 17 lots and the applicant 
accepted that limitation. 
 
Mr. Lethbridge said that on July 18, 2013, the Planning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of the rezone application. 
 
8:06:54 PM Leslie Mascaro, Henry Walker Homes, addressed Council’s questions and 
explained that the maximum density for 1/3 acre lots would be 16 lots and the maximum density 
for ¼ acre lots would be 22. However, she said they have requested one additional lot, due to 
stubbed road and detention pond requirements. She spoke of fencing, tree lined streets and 
various home types. 
 
8:11:18 PM Mayor Applegarth opened a Public Hearing and called for public comments.  
 
8:11:30 PM  Unidentified, asked about previous ¼ acre proposed rezones. He spoke in favor of 
keeping the area the same as R-3 for consistency in zoning. 
 
8:16:47 PM Jack Butterfield, Riverton resident, expressed his concerns with increased traffic 
and infrastructure and said that if the proposed rezone were approved the City would be 
obligated to rezone adjacent properties. He also said that, although the City does not have 
authority over the School District but they have the ability and obligation to govern how many 
children go into the schools. He then said to leave the zoning as R-3 designation.  
 
8:18:43 PM Mike Behr said to leave it R-3; there was no point to the proposed rezone.   
 
8:18:58 PM Wilford Green, Riverton resident, said his property was zoned R-3 and with the 
roads and detention pond it is only feasible for it to be zoned for ¼ acre lots.  
 
8:19:49 PM Curtis Butterfield said he appreciated the open forum. He spoke of the community 
that Riverton is and that in order to have continuity in the community it should be zoned R-3 as 
they were told and not keep going to the City Council for rezone consideration. He then told 
Council Member Leavitt that since the proposed rezone was in his Council District his vote and 
other votes for the upcoming election were dependent on Mr. Leavitt’s vote regarding the rezone.    

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:03:10&quot;?Data=&quot;5639dee1&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:06:54&quot;?Data=&quot;fdbc3c49&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:11:18&quot;?Data=&quot;2f7cd42c&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:11:30&quot;?Data=&quot;e4218a4a&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:16:47&quot;?Data=&quot;1c0fd618&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:18:43&quot;?Data=&quot;c753ad7d&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:18:58&quot;?Data=&quot;25651e81&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:19:49&quot;?Data=&quot;dc6c47&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 6 

8:21:31 PM Maryann Butterfield asked about previous votes regarding the area and said that 
she was concerned with increased traffic and spoke in favor of keeping the zoning at 1/3 acre. 
 
8:24:05 PM Brenda Frank said she preferred 1/3 acre lots, she spoke of lot values and asked the 
Council to keep it at 1/3 acre lots for continuity. 
 
8:25:35 PM Cody Bearden said he favors large lots; he lives on a 1/3 acre lot and urged the 
Council to keep the zoning at 1/3 acre lots. 
 
8:27:49 PM There being no further comments, Mayor Applegarth declared the Public Hearing 
closed. 
 
8:27:56 PM Questions were addressed from the Council Members and City Attorney Ryan 
Carter explained that there was no limitation to the number of times a property owner or 
developer could come before the Council and that it was a landowners property right.  
 
 Ordinance No. 13-15 - Rezoning 6.89 acres located at 1863 West 11900 South  
    from R-3 (Residential 1/3 Acre Lots) to R-4-SD (Residential ¼ Acre Lots with   
      Specific Development Designations), Henry Walker Homes, Applicant   
 
8:30:12 PM Council Member Roy Tingey MOVED to approve Ordinance  No. 13-15, 
rezoning 6.89 acres located at approximately 11900 South 1863 West from R-3 (Residential 
1/3 acre lots) to R-4-SD (Residential ¼ acre lots, Specific Development Designation), with 
the following SD designations: 

1. The maximum number of residential lots shall be seventeen (17). 
2. The development shall include the following: 

a. Full perimeter fencing  
b. Standard 3-car garage  
c. Mix of housing types 
d. Ornamental street trees in park strips  

  e. Pedestrian mobility and connections to surrounding neighborhoods.   
With the designations included in our packet which includes the designation you say with 
the exception of the price point of the home. Council Member Sheldon Smith SECONDED 
the motion.  Mayor Applegarth called for discussion on the motion; there being none, he called 
for a Roll Call Vote.  The vote was as follows: Johnson-Yes, Leavitt-No, Stewart-Yes, Thaxton-
No and Tingey-Yes. The motion passed 3 to 2. 
 
8:31:44 PM Mayor Applegarth led discussion back to between Redwood Road and 2700 West 
and there was no discussion.  Mayor Applegarth then led discussion to the quadrant from 2700 
West to Bangerter Highway north of 12600 South and there was no discussion.  8:32:58 PM 
Mayor Applegarth then led discussion to the quadrant north of 12600 South and Bangerter 
Highway to the western City limits and there was no discussion.  8:33:47 PM Mayor Applegarth 
then led discussion to the quadrant south of 12600 from the Jordan River east of Redwood Road. 
 
Mr. Lethbridge re-emphasized the changes that were previously discussed. 
 
8:35:09 PM Bob Ford spoke in favor of the plan and said it was consistent with The Heritage 
Group’s ideas and plans for the area. 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:21:31&quot;?Data=&quot;7baec9a5&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:24:05&quot;?Data=&quot;d5643d88&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:25:35&quot;?Data=&quot;ea42aa61&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:27:49&quot;?Data=&quot;3978a088&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:27:56&quot;?Data=&quot;bf22d670&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:30:12&quot;?Data=&quot;a53bb41d&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:31:44&quot;?Data=&quot;c8caf8c0&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:32:58&quot;?Data=&quot;221da72b&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:33:47&quot;?Data=&quot;9927f863&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:35:09&quot;?Data=&quot;8fed8891&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 7 

8:35:49 PM Mark Newman asked about property near the Vistas and what commercial uses 
were allowed there.  
 
There being no further comments on that section, Mayor Applegarth declared the Public Hearing 
closed. 
 
8:45:43 PM Mayor Applegarth then led discussion to the quadrant from 12600 South to the 
southern boundary from Redwood Road to 2700 West and there was no discussion. 
 
8:47:49 PM Mayor Applegarth led discussion to the quadrant from 12600 South 2700 West and 
Bangerter Highway and there was no discussion. 
 
4. Public Hearing – regarding a proposed rezone of approximately 13 acres located at 
13350 S 3300 W be rezoned from RR-22 (Rural Residential with ½ Acre Min. Lot Size) to 
R-3 (Residential 1/3 Acre Lots) – Custom Craft Homes, Applicant 
 
8:49:28 PM Jason Lethbridge, Planning Manager, explained that Custom Craft Homes submitted 
an application requesting that three parcels located at approximately 3300 West 13260 South 
totaling 13.42 acres be rezoned from RR-22 (Rural Residential ½ acre lots) to R-3 (Residential 
14,000 square foot lots). The surrounding properties are all zoned RR-22 and a have a minimum 
of half an acre thus carrying with them the right to have large animals. Along the east is a canal. 
 
Mr. Lethbridge said the current General Plan designates the properties as low-density residential.  
The designation suggests a lot size minimum of 14,000 square feet.  The R-3 zoning that was 
requested by the applicant does comply with the General Plan. However, while the General Plan 
designation allows for a minimum lot size of 1/3, it does not preclude the development of larger 
lots within the area, especially if determined to be appropriate to the surrounding area by the 
Planning Commission and/or City Council. An application requesting the rezoning of this 
property was heard by the Planning Commission and City Council in April and June of 2012.   
 
Mr. Lethbridge said that on July 18, 2013, the Planning Commission voted to recommend denial 
of the rezone application. 
 
8:50:21 PM Clarification was made that the current applicant was different from the applicant of 
June 2012. 
 
8:51:36 PM Mayor Applegarth opened a Public Hearing and called for public comments.  
 
8:51:44 PM Travis West, Riverton resident, thanked the Council for keeping the property 1/2 
acre lots and said it was the third time for a rezone request. He then spoke of property and the 
animal rights associated with the property. 
 
8:53:00 PM Drew Larsen, Sandy resident, representing Custom Craft Homes, said they were 
proposing R-3 SD Designation with a cap on the number of lots to 25 rather than 36, which 
would allow them to create a buffer of ½ acre lots on the north and the west boundary with a few 
lots that would be a scant short of ½ acre.   
 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:35:49&quot;?Data=&quot;88e4204d&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:45:43&quot;?Data=&quot;6f0ef87f&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:47:49&quot;?Data=&quot;ef214395&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:49:28&quot;?Data=&quot;4d87b007&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:50:21&quot;?Data=&quot;5a09ba9a&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:51:36&quot;?Data=&quot;29ea6fda&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:51:44&quot;?Data=&quot;1e931bdd&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;20:53:00&quot;?Data=&quot;7362565&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 8 

Discussion was held regarding lots with animal rights and closure of the north road.  In response 
to Mayor Applegarth, Staff requested that the proposal be reworked and a formal presentation for 
an SD be submitted to the Council.   
 
9:08:11 PM Travis West said he was told that the property would be zoned for ½ acre lots but it 
would not be zoned for animals. 
 
9:09:11 PM James Graham, Custom Craft Homes, said they are proposing a R-3 SD 
Designation with a cap on the number of lots to 25, but he said they are open to suggestions and 
they are flexible. 
 
9:09:45 PM Riverton resident said she did not want smaller lots; Riverton is no longer the place 
they moved to and they do not want smaller lots. 
 
9:10:45 PM There being no further comments, Mayor Applegarth declared the Public Hearing 
closed. 
 
 Ordinance No. 13-14 - Rezoning 13.42 acres located at approximately 3300 West  
     13260 South from RR-22 (Rural Residential ½ Acre Lots) to R-3 (Residential 14,000 
     Square Foot Residential Lots), Custom Craft Homes, Applicant 
 
9:10:48 PM Council Member Sheldon Stewart MOVED the City Council DENY Ordinance 
No. 13-14, the proposed rezone of three properties located at 13204 S 3300 W, 13207 S 3300 
W and 13350 S 3300 W from RR-22 to R-3. Council Member Tracy Thaxton SECONDED the 
motion.  Mayor Applegarth called for discussion on the motion; there being none, he called for a 
Roll Call Vote.  The vote was as follows: Johnson-Yes, Leavitt-Yes, Stewart-Yes, Thaxton-Yes 
and Tingey-Yes. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9:12:54 PM   Mayor Applegarth then led discussion to the City’s western boundary and 12600 
South to the southern boundary. Mr. Lethbridge re-emphasized the changes that were previously 
discussed.  There were no further questions or comments. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Applegarth declared the Public Hearing closed. 
 
DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
Commercial Site Plan, Rivertowne Professional Plaza, 3018 West 12600 South, C-PO Zone, 
Gorm Klungervik, Applicant  
 
9:18:40 PM Jason Lethbridge, Planning Manager, explained Gorm Klungervik has submitted an 
application for Commercial Site Plan approval of the Rivertowne Professional Plaza commercial 
site plan, located at 3018 West 12600 South. The property is zoned C-PO (Commercial 
Professional Office) and is currently vacant.  Property the west is zoned C-PO but is still utilized 
as residential.  To the east property is zoned RR-22 (Rural Residential ½ acre lots) and to the 
north property is also zoned RR-22 and are utilized as residential. South of 12600 South property 
is zoned R-4 (Residential ¼ acre lots).   
 
 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:08:11&quot;?Data=&quot;f458de2f&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:09:11&quot;?Data=&quot;c938f79f&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:09:45&quot;?Data=&quot;ab9ff070&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:10:45&quot;?Data=&quot;6dd341a4&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:10:48&quot;?Data=&quot;d87d3fe9&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:12:54&quot;?Data=&quot;fca49b2&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:18:40&quot;?Data=&quot;20d4fe20&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 9 

Mr. Lethbridge said the applicant proposed a multi-building-pad, multi-building commercial 
development.  The parking area would be the common area maintained by an agreement with the 
owners of the individual pad sites within the development.  There would be five individual 
building pad sites between 5000 and 6000 square feet along the east and north property lines.  A 
subdivision plat creating the lots, as well as the common area, was being considered for approval 
along with the site plan. 
 
Mr. Lethbridge said on August 22, 2013, the Planning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of the Rivertowne Professional Plaza Commercial Site Plan, Application number PL-
12-8005, located at 3018 West 12600 South, with the following conditions: 
 

1.  Storm drainage systems and accommodation comply with Riverton City standards 
 and ordinances, and with the recommendations of the Riverton City Engineering 
 Division. 
2.  An interim storm drainage and erosion control plan and an access management plan 
 be approved by the City prior to any construction or grading on the site. 
3.  The site and structures comply with any and all applicable Riverton City standards 
 and ordinances, including the International Building and Fire Codes. 
4.  Building pads 2 – 5 shall be landscaped with sod and include an irrigation system 
 until development shall occur on the pad. 
5.  Building architecture for building pads 2 – 5 shall be approved by Planning prior to 
 building permit issuance and shall resemble the original building constructed in the 

    development. 
 
Mayor Applegarth called for comments from the Council.  
 
9:22:41 PM Brief discussion was held and clarification was made that fencing would be required 
at the front end of construction. 
 
9:24:20 PM Council Member Tracy Thaxton MOVED the City Council approve the 
Rivertowne Professional Plaza Commercial Site Plan, Application Number PL-12-8005, 
located at 3018 West 12600 South, with the conditions outlined in the Staff Report.  Council 
Member Brent Johnson SECONDED the motion.  Mayor Applegarth called for discussion on 
the motion; there being none, he called for a Roll Call Vote.  The vote was as follows: Johnson-
Yes, Leavitt-Yes, Stewart-Yes, Thaxton-Yes and Tingey-Yes. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Single Phase Subdivision, Kenadi Cove, 12026 South Redwood Road, 2.87 Acres, 11 Lots, 
R-4 Zone, Mark Newman, Applicant 
 
9:25:20 PM Jason Lethbridge, Planning Manager, explained an application for a Single Phase 
Subdivision for property located at approximately 12026 South Redwood Road.  The property is 
zoned R-4, as are the properties to the west and the south.  The property to the north is zoned R-4 
and C-N (Commercial Neighborhood).  The proposed development consists of eleven (11) lots, 
all of which access from Kenadi Cove Court, a public street that would be stubbed at the north 
property line for future connectivity as those properties develop.   
 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:22:41&quot;?Data=&quot;f5eba56e&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:24:20&quot;?Data=&quot;673d1d3d&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:25:20&quot;?Data=&quot;5a5d348d&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 10 

Mr. Lethbridge said the subdivision was originally approved by both the Planning Commission 
and City Council in 2005. However, although improvements were made to the site, the developer 
did not record a subdivision plat and therefore never formally divided the ground.  In such 
circumstances, Riverton City ordinance states that the City's approval shall lapse after one (1) 
year.  The applicant is proposing moving forward with development of the subdivision, but was 
required to reapply for and receive subdivision approval by the City. 
 
Mr. Lethbridge said that on August 22, 2013, the Planning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of Application #13-1003, the Kenadi Cove Single Phase Subdivision, located at 
approximately 12026 South Redwood Road with the following conditions: 
 
 1.  Driveway access for all lots, including Lot 11, shall be from Kenadi Cove Court, with 

no direct access to/from Redwood Road. 
 2.  Storm drainage systems and installation shall comply with Engineering Department 
 requirements and standards. 
 3.  Any and all irrigation ditches associated with the property be addressed, with 

disposition of the irrigation systems approved by Riverton City and the proper 
irrigation company or users. 

 4.  The subdivision comply with any and all applicable Riverton City standards and 
 ordinances, including the International Building and Fire Codes. 
 5.  Collector street fencing (6’ solid masonry) be installed along the lots that are adjacent 

to Redwood Road. 
 
9:29:49 PM Council Member Brent Johnson MOVED the City Council approve Application 
No. 13-1003, the Kenadi Cove Single Phase Subdivision, located at approximately 12026 
South Redwood Road with the conditions outlined in the Staff Report. Council Member Al 
Leavitt SECONDED the motion. Mayor Applegarth called for discussion on the motion; there 
being none, he called for a Roll Call Vote.  The vote was as follows: Johnson-Yes, Leavitt-Yes, 
Stewart-Yes, Thaxton-Yes and Tingey-Yes. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Applegarth presented the following Consent Agenda:  
 
1. Minutes: RCCM 08-20-13 
2. Bond Releases: N/A 
3. Resolution No. 13-41 – Authorizing the City to enter into a contract with Kilgore Contracting 

to complete the 1300 West (11940 South to Creekhaven Drive) Road Way Improvement Project  
4. Resolution No. 13-42 – Ratifying the Emergency Repair made to the Maynard Well Pump by 

Widdison Turbine Service 
5. Resolution No. 13-43 – Approving a Nonexclusive Lease Agreement with Southwest 

Commonwealth for the use of the Sandra N. Lloyd Community Center 
6. Resolution No. 13-44 - Rescinding an Improvement Agreement with Auburn Fields at 

Cedar Hollow, LLC for Cedar Hollow Townhomes Phase 1 Subdivision 
7. Ordinance No. 13-16 – Repealing Riverton City Code of Ordinances Chapter 2.130 

Campaign Finance Disclosure Requirements 
 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:29:49&quot;?Data=&quot;4ae21e77&quot;�


September 3, 2013 - Regular City Council Meeting 
Page 11 

9:30:37 PM Council Member Brent Johnson MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Council Member Al Leavitt SECONDED the motion.  Mayor Applegarth called for 
discussion on the motion; there being none, he called for a Roll Call Vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Johnson-Yes, Leavitt-Yes, Stewart-Yes, Thaxton-Yes and Tingey-Yes. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
ELECTED OFFICIAL REPORTS  
 
Mayor Bill Applegarth – Thanked the Council Member and Staff for their work and preparation 
for the Council Meeting.   
 
Council Member Brent Johnson – 9:32:43 PM said he was pleased to see the work being done 
on the cemetery. 
 
Council Member Al Leavitt – No report 
 
Council Member Sheldon Stewart – 9:33:52 PM thanked Sheril Garn and Trace Robinson for 
their responsiveness to some park issues.   
 
Council Member Tracy Thaxton – No report 
 
Council Member Roy Tingey – No report 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 
Mayor Applegarth reviewed the following tentative upcoming meetings: 
 
1. September 17, 2013 – General Plan Open House General Plan – 5:00 p.m. 
2. September 17, 2013 – Regular City Council Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
3. October 1, 2013       – Regular City Council Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
4. October 15, 2013     – Regular City Council Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 

 
ADJOURN  
 
9:34:45 PM Council Member Roy Tingey MOVED to adjourn. Council Member Brent Johnson 
SECONDED the motion. Mayor Applegarth called for discussion on the motion; there being 
none, he called for a vote. The vote was as follows: Council Member Johnson-Yes, Leavitt-Yes, 
Stewart-Yes, Thaxton-Yes and Tingey-Yes. The motion passed unanimously. The City 
Council Meeting adjourned at 9:36 p.m.  
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Virginia Loader, MMC 
Recorder 
 
Approved:  CC 09-17-13 

ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:30:37&quot;?Data=&quot;176294a8&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:32:43&quot;?Data=&quot;c811449&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:33:52&quot;?Data=&quot;2938668f&quot;�
ftr://?location=&quot;Riverton&nbsp;City&nbsp;Council&quot;?date=&quot;03-Sep-2013&quot;?position=&quot;21:34:45&quot;?Data=&quot;d59b466f&quot;�

